
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

SPECIAL LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE 
 

Thursday, 13th August, 2020, 10.00 am – MS Teams (watch it 
here ) 

 
Members: Councillors Gina Adamou (Chair), Peter Mitchell and Viv Ross 
 
Quorum: 3 
 
1. FILMING AT MEETINGS   

 
Please note this meeting may be filmed or recorded by the Council for live or 
subsequent broadcast via the Council’s internet site or by anyone attending 
the meeting using any communication method.  Members of the public 
participating in the meeting (e.g. making deputations, asking questions, 
making oral protests) should be aware that they are likely to be filmed, 
recorded or reported on.  By entering the ‘meeting room’, you are consenting 
to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings. 
 
The Chair of the meeting has the discretion to terminate or suspend filming or 
recording, if in his or her opinion continuation of the filming, recording or 
reporting would disrupt or prejudice the proceedings, infringe the rights of any 
individual, or may lead to the breach of a legal obligation by the Council. 
 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 

3. URGENT BUSINESS   
 
It being a special meeting of the Sub Committee, under Part Four, Section B, 
Paragraph 17, of the Council’s Constitution, no other business shall be 
considered at the meeting. 
 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
A member with a disclosable pecuniary interest or a prejudicial interest in a 
matter who attends a meeting of the authority at which the matter is 
considered: 
 
(i) must disclose the interest at the start of the meeting or when the interest 
becomes apparent, and 
(ii) may not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must 
withdraw from the meeting room. 
 
A member who discloses at a meeting a disclosable pecuniary interest which 
is not registered in the Register of Members’ Interests or the subject of a 

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NDM4NGU5MDAtM2E1OS00NzVmLWI1ZDctNDFmNzg0ODRiZGU0%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%226ddfa760-8cd5-44a8-8e48-d8ca487731c3%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%2202aebd75-93bf-41ed-8a06-f0d41259aac0%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d


 

pending notification must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 
days of the disclosure. 
 
Disclosable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests 
are defined at Paragraphs 5-7 and Appendix A of the Members’ Code of 
Conduct. 
 

5. REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE UNDER THE LICENSING ACT 2003 
PHILIP LANE SOCIAL CLUB, 209-211 PHILIP  LANE, LONDON N15  
(PAGES 1 - 90) 
 
 

 
Emma Perry, Principal Committee Co-ordinator 
Tel – 020 8489 3427 
Fax – 020 8881 5218 
Email: emma.perry@haringey.gov.uk 
 
Bernie Ryan 
Assistant Director – Corporate Governance and Monitoring Officer 
River Park House, 225 High Road, Wood Green, N22 8HQ 
 
Wednesday, 05 August 2020 
 



 

Page 1 of 7  

 
Report for:  Licensing Sub Committee 13th August 2020  
 
Title: Review of a Premises Licence under the Licensing Act 2003 

Philip Lane Social Club, 209-211 Philip  Lane, London N15  
 
authorised by :  Daliah Barrett-Licensing Team Leader – Regulatory Services. 
 
Ward(s) affected West Green 
 
Report for Key/  
Non Key Decision: Not applicable     
 
1. Describe the issue under consideration 
 
1.1 An application for the review of the Premises Licence for Philip Lane Social Club 

at the above address. The review application and supporting documents are 
located at Appendix 1. The licence is held by Mr A Toprak. Mr Toprak has held 
the licence since May 2014. A copy of the current premises licence is attached as 
Appendix 2. 

 
1.2 Mr Toprak transferred the premises to become the Premises Licence holder and 

the Designated Premises Supervisor under the terms of the licence and therefore 
carries the responsibility to ensure that the licensing objectives are being upheld 
and promoted. 

 

1.3 The Council records show that Mr Toprak had enforcement action taken against 
him for having illegal gaming machines onsite in June 2015. Also it is clear from 
the records held that Mr Toprak has not taken care in the conduct of his premises 
as the enforcement action ranges from illegal gaming machines to non-
compliance with Health Act requirements to dumping waste. 

 

1.4 The machines found were unauthorised and illegal gaming machines in 
contravention of the Licensing Act 2003 and the Gambling Act 2005. The 
machines did not comply with the regulations or technical standards set by the 
Gambling Commission. 

 
1.5 The table below shows a number of enforcement visits and outcomes under Mr 

Topraks management. The latest being that the premises was found to be 
operating at a time when the country was placed into lockdown to mitigate the 
impact of the virus across the country. Mr Toprak continued to operate the 
premises by providing access to the public, who were able to enter to socialise 
and smoke within the premises as well as play on the illegal machines. 

 
1.6 It was during the service of the review documentation that the Licensing Authority 

RA Officer realised that changes had been made to the rear of the premises to 
allow for an additional social club to be operated by another gentleman who Mr 
Toprak receives rent from. This area of the premises contained alcohol for sale 
and had been used for various dance events, which had been the subject of a 
number of noise complaints. The person renting the area has confirmed that he 

Page 1 Agenda Item 5



 

Page 2 of 7  

pays rent to Mr Toprak and operates a social club that caters to the Afro-
Caribbean community.  

 
1.7 The Licensing Authority RA is seeking a review of the premises licence on the 

grounds that the repeated siting of illegal gaming machines at this premises and 
Mr Topraks’ continued non-compliance undermines the prevention of crime and 
disorder licensing objective and that this is detrimental to the wider community. 
The Licensing Authority have lost confidence in the premises licence holder as 
they have ignored repeated advice and have continued to replace the seized 
machines with other illegal machines.  

 
1.8 Residents that have submitted representation in support of the review have made 

clear that they have been adversely affected by noise nuisance from the 
premises over a number of months. Residents letters are found at Appendix 5. 

 
1.9 The Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 (para 11.2) 

states that at any stage following the grant of a premises licence, a responsible 
authority, such as the Police or the Environmental Health Service, or any other 
person who can seek a review, may ask the Licensing Authority to review the 
premises licence because of a matter arising at the premises in connection with 
any of the four licensing objectives. 

 
1.10 As such, in accordance with section 52(2) of the above-mentioned Act, the 

Licensing Authority must hold a hearing to consider the application and any 
relevant representations. 

 
2 Licensing history of the premises  
       
2.1 The complaints and enforcement action taken during Mr Topraks management:  
 

Date Issue/complaints received action 

12/6/2015  Gaming machine on premises Simple Caution 

20/9/2016 Smoking on premises Written warning issued 

09/12/2016 Smoking on premises No contact 

26/10/17 Gaming machine and illegal cigarettes Enf Notice 

14/11/17 illegal gambling, they do this at the front 
and rear of the property, they also have 
illegal fruit machines, and poker games 
with a profit of 10k, also drug use 

Referred to ASB Officer 

23/2/18 5 x Joker Poker Machines, 2 x Black 
Horse Machines, 1 x Betting Terminal 

Prosecution – conviction 
(fine £600, comp £60 & 
fees £340) 

22/5/18 Flytip FPN - Paid 

26/5/19 Loud music No visit 

8/8/19 Loud music between 10am to 3am  Caller wanted to log only 

8/8/19 Caller would like to report loud music 
from 8pm till 4 or 5am 

Caller wanted to log only 

14/8/19 Loud music and bass. OOH email.   No 
officers on duty - Log only. 

Caller wanted to log only 

15/8/19 Caller says that the music is playing 
loud music until 2am, their licenced for 

Caller wanted to log only 

Page 2



 

Page 3 of 7  

music up until 11pm. There is a lot of 
shouting when their customers leave 
the premises 

25/7/19 Community Protection warning served 31/8/19 – complied with 
notice 

20/2/20 Fly tip FPN paid 

5/6/20  Covid- 19 restricted business open (open to public) 

12/6/20 Covid- 19 restricted business open 15/6/20 prohibition notice 
issued 

   

 
2.2 The premises has the ability to serve alcohol and is therefore able to apply to 

have gaming machines onsite. The Government’s aim is for gaming machines to 
only be in premises where children's access is controlled. Qualifying alcohol 
licensed premises under the Licensing Act 2003 are entitled (under Automatic 
Entitlement) to provide two gaming machines of category C or D upon notification 
to the licensing authority (LA).  Automatic Entitlements are only applicable to 
alcohol licensed premises, where there are bar facilities available on the 
premises for the sale and consumption of alcohol.  

 
2.3 Notification (for a maximum of two machines) 

To take advantage of this entitlement, the Premises Licence Holder must give 
notice to the Council of their intention to make gaming machines available for 
use, and must pay the prescribed fee. 
 

2.4 Permit (for three or more machines) 
Relevant premises may also apply for a permit to provide a greater number of 
machines. This means obtaining a Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permit 
from the Council. A Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permit allows any 
number of Category C or D machines to be provided in licensed premises.  

 
2.5 Philip Lane Snooker Club has made no such application and does not hold either 

the normal notification of 2 machines or the Premises Gaming machine permit. 
 
2.6 The current licence permits: 

Supply of Alcohol 
 Monday to Sunday   1100 to 2300 

The opening hours of the premises: 
 Monday to Sunday   1100 to 2330 
  Supply of alcohol for consumption OFF the premises 
 
 2.7 These review proceedings are brought under the licensing objectives crime and 

disorder. Mr Toprak has a previous conviction for this activity and is facing further 
prosecution. The machines being placed on site are not being sourced and 
maintained by a Gambling Commission licensed supplier as required under the 
Gambling Act 2005.  

    
2.8 If a machine is illegally supplied this poses a risk to the first licensing objective of 

keeping crime out of gambling. A machine that does not meet the regulations and 
technical standard requirements may also risk the fair and open licensing 

Page 3



 

Page 4 of 7  

objective and therefore pose a risk of harm to members of the public interacting 
with these machines. 

   
2.9 It is the responsibility of the business owner to ensure the machine meets the 

regulatory requirements prior to making them available for use to the public. If a 
machine fails to meet the requirements above, it is the business owner and not 
the machine supplier that is liable for this.       

  
2.10 There are some gaming machines that are not permitted by anyone, even 

licensed premises. These include;  

 Joker Poker gaming machines – these may not all pay out cash but accrue 
credits which are redeemed in another way.  

 Black Horse machines are not authorised by the Gambling Commission here in 
the UK and cannot be legally sited on a premises.  

 
There is no application process that will enable premises to have these 
machines. Betting Terminals are only permitted in premises licensed under the 
Gambling Act 2005 such as licensed book makers. 

 
2.11 Advice on the legality of Joker Poker machines, these machines often state ‘For 

Amusement Only’.  
The Gambling Commission Officer advised that:  
1. As poker is a game of chance the machines displaying poker are gaming 

machines.  
2. Gaming machines must be supplied by a Licensed (by the Gambling 

Commission) Gaming machine supplier.  
3. Gaming machines must comply with the Commission’s technical standards 

– joker poker machines have never been tested therefore would not comply 
with technical standards.  

4. Gaming machines must meet the S240 Regulations i.e. display appropriate 
signage,Social Responsibility information, stakes and prizes, gaming 
machine category.  

 
2.12 The Gambling Commission Officer also stated that if officers simply ask the 

premises owner to remove the machines, the machines would remain in 
circulation and be moved to another premises in the borough. They therefore 
recommended seizing the machines instead. 

 
2.13 It is an offence under Section 242 of the Gambling Act 2005 for a gaming 

machine to be illegally sited on any premises. It is also an offence under Section 
243 of the Gambling Act 2005 to supply a gaming machine which does not 
comply with Section 241 of the Gambling Act 2005 and/or the supplier does not 
have the appropriate operating licence. Both offences carry an unlimited fine 
and/or 51 weeks imprisonment upon conviction. 

         
3  Other considerations 
 
3.1 A number of reviews may arise in connection with crime that is not directly 

connected with licensable activities. The Guidance (11.27) states that there are 
certain criminal activities that may arise in connection with licensed premises, 
which the Secretary of State considers should be treated particularly seriously. 
The list includes unlawful gambling.  

Page 4



 

Page 5 of 7  

 
3.2 The guidance (11.28) goes on to say that it is envisaged that responsible 

authorities will use the review procedures effectively to deter such activities and 
crime. Where reviews arise and the licensing authority determines that the crime 
prevention objective is being undermined through the premises being used to 
further crimes, it is expected that revocation of the licence – even in the first 
instance – should be seriously considered.  

 
3.3 The Licensing Authority RA is of the opinion that the problems associated with 

the alleged crimes are affecting the promotion of the licensing objectives. The 
Licensing Authorities duty is to take steps with a view to the promotion of the 
licensing objectives in the interests of the wider community and not those of the 
individual licence holder.  

 
3.4 Reviews are part of the regulatory process introduced by the 2003 Act and they 

are not part of criminal law and procedure. There is, therefore, no reason why 
representations giving rise to a review of a premises licence need be delayed 
pending the outcome of any criminal proceedings. Some reviews will arise after 
the conviction in the criminal courts of certain individuals, but not all. In any case, 
it is for the licensing authority to determine whether the problems associated with 
the alleged crimes are taking place on the premises and affecting the promotion 
of the licensing objectives. Where a review follows a conviction, it would also not 
be for the licensing authority to go beyond any findings by the courts, which 
should be treated as a matter of undisputed evidence before them. 

  
3.5 Where the licensing authority is conducting a review on the grounds that the 

premises have been used for criminal purposes, its role is solely to determine 
what steps should be taken in connection with the premises licence, for the 
promotion of the crime prevention objective. It is important to recognise that 
certain criminal activity or associated problems may be taking place or have 
taken place despite the best efforts of the licence holder and the staff working at 
the premises and despite full compliance with the conditions attached to the 
licence. In such circumstances, the licensing authority is still empowered to take 
any appropriate steps to remedy the problems. The Licensing Authority’s duty is 
to take steps with a view to the promotion of the licensing objectives in the 
interest of the wider community and not those of the individual licence holder. 

 
3.6 Options 

The Committee must, having regard to the application and the representations, 
take such steps (if any), as it considers appropriate for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives. The options are: 

                  

 To modify the conditions of the licence 

 To exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence 

 To remove the designated premises supervisor  

 To suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months 

 To revoke the licence 

 To take no action. 
          

3.7 The Sub-Committee must ensure that all licensing decisions have:  

Page 5



 

Page 6 of 7  

• a direct relationship to the promotion of one or more of the 4 licensing 
objectives;  

• regard to the Council’s statement of Licensing Policy;  
• regard to the Secretary of State's National Guidance.  

                         
Where the authority modifies the conditions or excludes a licensable activity from 
the scope of the licence it may determine that the modification or exclusion is to 
have effect permanently or for a period not exceeding 3 months. 

 
3.8 The Licensing Authority’s determination of this application does not have effect 

until the 21 days’ appeal period has expired or if the decision is appealed, the 
date the appeal is determined and or disposed of. 

 
3.9 Section 182 Guidance – relevant sections. 

The most recent statutory guidance was issued in April 2018 and applies to this 
application. 

        
3.10 The following provisions of the Secretary of State’s guidance (2018) apply to this 

application: 
Chapter 11-this chapter gives guidance around the review process and 
determining an application for a review. 

      
3.11 Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 (para 11.2) states 

that at any stage following the grant of a premises licence or club premises 
certificate, a responsible authority, or any other person, may ask the licensing 
authority to review the licence or certificate because of a matter arising at the 
premises in connection with any of the four licensing objectives.  

 
3.12 In accordance with section 52(2) of the Act, the Licensing authority must hold a 

hearing to consider the application and any relevant representations. 
 
3.13 Section 11.27 -There is certain criminal activity that may arise in connection with 

licensed premises which should be treated particularly seriously. These are the 
use of the licensed premises:  
• for the sale and distribution of drugs controlled under the Misuse of Drugs Act 

1971 and the laundering of the proceeds of drugs crime;  
• for the sale and distribution of illegal firearms;  
• for the evasion of copyright in respect of pirated or unlicensed films and music, 

which does considerable damage to the industries affected;  
• for the illegal purchase and consumption of alcohol by minors which impacts on 

the health, educational attainment, employment prospects and propensity 
for crime of young people;  

• for prostitution or the sale of unlawful pornography;  
• by organised groups of paedophiles to groom children;  
• as the base for the organisation of criminal activity, particularly by gangs; 
• for the organisation of racist activity or the promotion of racist attacks;  
• for employing a person who is disqualified from that work by reason of their 

immigration status in the UK;  
• for unlawful gambling; and  
 • for the sale or storage of smuggled tobacco and alcohol. 

 
3.14 Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 states: 

Page 6



 

Page 7 of 7  

‘’Without prejudice to any other obligation imposed on it, it shall be the duty of 
each authority to which this section applies to exercise its various functions with 
due regard to the likely effect of the exercise of those function on, and the need 
to do all that is reasonable to prevent crime and disorder in its area’’. 

 
3.15 Human Rights 
  While all Convention Rights must be considered, those which are of particular           

relevance to the application are: 
o Article 8 – Right to respect for private and family life. 
o Article 1 of the First Protocol – Protection of Property 
o Article 6(1) – Right to a fair hearing. 
o Article 10 – Freedom of Expression 

 
4. Use of Appendices 
 
  Appendix 1 - Application form review  

Appendix 2 –  Copy of current licence. 
Appendix 3 – Warning letter issued during Lockdown & 
Appendix 4 – Prohibition Notice 
Appendix 5 – Residents representations 

 
Background papers:  Licensing Act 2003 
                                  Section 182 Guidance 
                                  Haringey Statement of Licensing policy 
                                  Report Pack 
 
 
  
     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
Appendix 1 – Review Application  
 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Environmerit & Nei_ghbotarhoods 

licensing Team leader Dalrah Barrett -Williams.

Dear Mr Toprak, 

Re: PREMISE LICENCEr REVIEW APPLl€AJ110N 

�aringe·¥ 
LONDON 1 

Date; t4th May 2020 

We have now. made an application) to trae Licenshilg Authority ,to review 1/0l!Jr Jpremises 
licence. 

Please see· enclosed the applicatiorn arad sl!.lpporting doct!Jmentation. 

If yot!J have any ql!.lestioris, please1 do not hesitate to contact ;the Licensing team at
licensil'ilg@haringey.gov.uk. 

Yours faithft:1lly, 

Sarah Greer 

Enc: Copy of Review �pplicatiot'il 

1ASB Team 
l:.evel 1, River Park House 
225 liligh 1Road
l.:.ondon, N22,'8HQ 

if 02018489 1000 
www.haringey.g·ov.uk 

Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
Appendix 2 – Copy of current licence. 
 

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



LICENSING ACT 2003 
Sec 24             
       

PREMISES LICENCE 
 
Receipt: FO0109009956          Premises Licence Number: LN/00003186  
 
This Premises Licence has been issued by: 

The Licensing Authority, London Borough of Haringey, 
 Technopark, Ashley Road 

Tottenham, London, N17 9LN 
 
Signature: ......................................................................  Date: 29th March 2006 
                       6th May 2014 
Part 1 – PREMISES DETAILS  

Postal Address of Premises or, if none, Ordnance Survey map reference or 
description: 

PHILIP LANE CAFÉ  
209-211 PHILIP LANE 

LONDON 
N15 4HL  

 

Where the Licence is time limited, the dates: 

Not applicable 

Licensable activities authorised by the Licence: 

Supply of Alcohol 

The times the Licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities: 

Supply of Alcohol 

Monday to Sunday   1100 to 2300 

The opening hours of the premises: 

Monday to Sunday   1100 to 2330 

Where the Licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off 
supplies: 

Supply of alcohol for consumption OFF the premises 

Page 73



LICENSING ACT 2003 
Sec 24             
       

 

Part 2 

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and e-mail (where relevant) of 
holder of Premises Licence: 

Ali Toprak 
124 St Loys Road 
Tottenham 
London 
N17 6UD 

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number 
(where applicable): 

Not applicable 

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where 
the Premises Licence authorises the supply of alcohol: 

Ali Toprak 
124 St Loys Road 
Tottenham 
London 
N17 6UD 

Personal Licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by 
designated premises supervisor where the Premises Licence authorises for the 
supply of alcohol: 

Personal Licence Number:    LN/000012491 

Issued by:      The London Borough of Haringey 

Expiry Date:      26th April 2024 

Page 74



Annex 1 –Mandatory Conditions 

 
(2) ) Supply of alcohol: No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence- 
 
(a) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises licence, 
or 
(b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or his 
personal licence is suspended. 
 
(3) The second condition is that every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made 
or authorised by a person who holds a personal licence. 
 
Additional Mandatory Conditions in relation to Supply of Alcohol  
 
(1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder shall ensure that an age 
verification policy applies to the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol. 
(2) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of 
age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being  served 

alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and a holographic mark. 
 

Page 75



Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule 

 
GENERAL – ALL FOUR LICENSING OBJECTIVES 

 The standard practices listed below will be maintained at all times. All reasonable steps will 
be taken to ensure that the premises will have a positive impact upon the local environment 
and its residents at all times.  

 
THE PREVENTION OF CRIME AND DISORDER 

 Any incidents of a criminal nature that may occur on the premises will be reported to the 
Police. 

 Digital CCTV to be installed and any images will be made available to the Police or the local 
authority upon request.  

 
PUBLIC SAFETY 

 Appropriate fire safety procedures are in place including fire extinguishers (foam, H2O and 
CO2), fire blanket, internally illuminated fire exit signs, numerous smoke detectors and 
emergency lighting (see enclosed plan for details of locations). All appliances are inspected 
annually. 

 All emergency exits shall be kept free from obstruction at all times.  
 
THE PREVENTION OF PUBLIC NUISANCE 

 All customers will be asked to leave quietly. 

 Clear and legible notices will be prominently displayed to remind customers to leave quietly. 
 
THE PROTECTION OF CHILDREN 

Alcohol may only be sold to individuals over the age of 18 with valid proof of identification with 
one of the following: 

 A valid passport 

 A photo driving license issued in a European Union Country 

 A proof of age standard card system 

 A citizen card, supported by the Home Office 
 

 A register of refused sales shall be kept and maintained on the premises.  
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Page 76



Annex 3 – Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 

 
 

 

Page 77



Annex 4 – Plans 

 

 

Page 78



 
 
Appendix 3 – Warning letter issued during Lockdown 

 

 

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

Community Safety & Enforcement      

Daliah Barrett- Licensing Team Leader 

 

  
 
 
 

Mr Toprak 
124 St Loys Road 
Tottenham  
London N17 6UD 

Date:  14th June 2020 

Your ref: CLOSURE PHILIP LANE SOCIAL CLUB 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dear Mr Toprak, 
 
PHILIP LANE SOCIAL CLUB – 209-211 PHILIP LANE N15  -   UNAUTHORISED USE OF PREMISES 
DURING COIVID 19 RESTRICTION PERIOD. 
 
 

Factual context 
A pandemic virus - Covid 19 - has spread across much of the world.  As of the 14th June, across 
the world over 7,690,708 people had contracted the virus and over 427,630 has died. 
 
In the UK, over 41,662 have died.  
 
There is no known cure for the virus, nor a vaccine, and the population not having been exposed 
before to the virus, no-one has natural immunity.  The virus is also highly infectious. 
 
National policy and legal context 
Against that background, government policy expressed among other places in its guidance to 
businesses is to reduce social interaction as much as possible.  This is a necessary measure to 
slow the progress of the pandemic in the UK. 
 
In furtherance of that policy the government has laid, and Parliament has passed, regulations 
under the Public Health (Control of Disease) Act 1984 which require all shops, pubs and 
restaurants to close unless they are of a description in Part 3 of Schedule 2 to the regulations – 
consumption of food and drink on the premises is high risk in terms of social interaction, both to 
the customer and to staff. 
 
As it stands it is inexcusable that you were therefore found to be operating the Philip Lane Social 
Club on Thursday 11th June at 10pm by the Enforcement Officers. The Council will be issuing you 
with a Prohibition Notice for the breach under The Health Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions) 
(England) Regulations 2020      

Requirement to close premises and businesses during the emergency 

4.—(1) A person responsible for carrying on a business which is listed in Part 1 of Schedule 2 

must—  

 

 

Page 81

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/further-businesses-and-premises-to-close/further-businesses-and-premises-to-close-guidance#businesses-and-premises-that-must-remain-closed
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2020/350/made


 

(a)during the emergency period— 

(i)close any premises, or part of the premises, in which food or drink are sold for consumption on 

those premises, and 

(ii)cease selling food or drink for consumption on its premises;  

 
The Enforcement Officers advised that the layout of the premises has also be altered and that 
you had sublet a back room to another person who was also operating a social club providing On 
sales of alcohol to customers onsite. You have failed to inform the Licensing Authority of any 
changes to the layout of the premises that affects the licence, this is a contravention under the 
Licensing Act 2003. 
 
It was also noted by the officers that you were allowing customers to smoke with the premises in 
breach of The Health Act 2006. 
 
Although you have already been warned against the use of illegal gaming machines onsite it was 
noted that you had further gaming machines available for use onsite that were not Category C or 
D and have no permission under the Gambling Act 2005 to be in situ. 
 
For the many contraventions stated above the Council will be seeking a prosecution against you 
on all the various matters under the relevant legislations. 
 
You are required by law to ensure that the premises is not operating in any capacity at this time. 
Your non-compliance as a licence holder is a serious matter that will be enforced against by this 
Authority. 
 
Regards 
 
Daliah Barrett 
Licensing Team Leader 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  
 

Page 82



 
 
Appendix 4 – Residents representations  
 

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank



From: julie woodall <julieswoodall@hotmail.com>  
Sent: 16 June 2020 20:54 
To: Licensing <Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk> 
Subject: Social club at 209 - 211 Philip Lane 
 

 
Hello Haringey licensing, 
I would like to share with you the experience residents on Summerhill Road are facing as a result 
of disrespectful behavour coming from the 'social club' at 209 - 211 Philip Lane. 
 

Here are the key issues: 

• Long-standing issue which has not been addressed 

• Impacting residents 24/7 preventing them from sleeping 

• Impacting quality of life of law-abiding, community minded persons 

• Disrespectful behaviour, disregard on behalf of social club, no consideration for anyone 
else but their own interests 

• Social club is situated in a residential area which is a conservation area with strict 
measure around how it operates and what is an isn't allowed so this behaviour 
particularly jarring - there is no allowance for any similar operation in this residential 
area for good reason, it is residential living space not an industrial zone. 

• There is an assisted housing community 'Summerhill Village' that is also being impacted 
which is intolerable for residents 

Please feel free to contact me should you have any further questions or would like clarification. 
Best regards, 
Julie Woodall 
Summerhill Road 
 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
From: vishal sethi <kvsdesignltd@gmail.com>  
Sent: 16 June 2020 23:13 
To: Licensing <Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk> 
Subject: Re: Social club 209-211 Philip Lane 
 
 

Kind regards, 
Vishal 
 
Revelloyd Interiors 
240 St. Paul's Rd 
London, N1 2LJ 
 
On Tue, 16 Jun 2020, 23:09 vishal sethi, <> wrote: 
Dear Sir or Madam, 
 
I am writing in regards to the premises mentioned in the subject header of this email. 
 
I believe that the council has a responsibility to the residents of Haringey to stamp out this type of 
behaviour that had been associated with this premises. 

Page 85



 
The loud music at anti social hours, music and parties until dawn. The associated pull of undesirable 
people and behaviour to our residential neighbourhood.  If the council do not take control of the 
situation then this will only encourage others to engage in similar behaviour. 
 
Their licence should be revoked and their conduct sternly censured. 
 
Kind regards, 
Vishal Sethi 
5 Summerhill Rd London N15 4HF 
 

Page 86



From: BT E-mail <till975@btinternet.com>  
Sent: 17 June 2020 11:12 
To: Licensing <Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk> 
Subject: Licence Application for 209 - 211 Philip Lane 
 
As a long standing resident of Summerhill Road (more than 30 years) I would like to register my 
objection to the renewal of the licence application for 209 – 211 Philip Lane social club. 
 
As a residential area within a conservation area, the social club is not within keeping with the nature 
of the area. 
 
The noise form the club has caused untold misery to nearby residents and is particularly disturbing 
for those residents in Summerhill Village many of whom have learning disabilities and mental health 
issues. 
 
Sincerely 
 
Lesley Till 
 
19 Summerhill Road 
N15 4HF 
 
Sent from Mail for Windows 10 
 

Page 87

https://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=550986


This page is intentionally left blank



From: Valerie Hayward <valerieheatherh47@btinternet.com>  
Sent: 16 June 2020 09:23 
To: Licensing <Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk> 
Subject: Licensing Review re Philip Lane Social Club, 209-211 Philip Lane, N15 4HL 
 
Dear sir/madam 
 
I would like to object against having any licence (music/DJ/dancing) renewed for the above premises on the 
grounds that it has affected the lives of the residents in the area greatly. 
 
The music and DJ on a microphone has been a regular occurrence for quite some time now and we have been in 
contact with your Noise Team and Brian Ellis (Enforcement Officer). It has sometimes been so bad that the police 
have been called when the Noise Team were unavailable and also quite recently when there was a social 
distancing problem. 
 
I would like to point out that the elderly residents in Summerhill Village and residents much further down the road 
have been affected. The noise has carried on until dawn the following morning, usually from Wednesday pm to 
Thursday morning. 
 
Yours faithfully, 
Mrs V Hayward 
Summerhill Road. 
 

 

Page 89



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Review of a Premises Licence under the Licensing Act 2003 Philip Lane Social Club, 209-211 Philip  Lane, London N15
	apx1
	Review App
	Supporting Documents
	apx2
	00003186 PHILIP LANE CAFE (FORMERLY MEDIA INTERNET CAFE)
	apx3
	PHILIP LANE SOCIAL CLUB WARNING DB
	apx4
	Residential representation PL Social club
	Residential representation
	Residential representation(1)




